Date: February 23, 2021
To: Merced City Council
From: Vicki Bandoni
Subject: Merrill Place
Dear City Council Members,

Leapfrog development! This describes the proposal that is before you
today. | am Vicki Bandoni and my family owns the land directly South and
East of the Merrill Place project. Our land encompasses approximately 240
acres of farmland planted to almonds and oats. We have lived on and
farmed this land since 1980. All of the land to our North, East and South is
open land. To our West across “G” Street is the Bellevue development.
The Merrill Place project proposed today sits in the middle of open land
about one half mile East of “G” Street.

Questionable “Student Housing”

Last week, you approved the annexation of the UC Merced campus into the
City of Merced, with the intention that services to the UC could be provided
closer to the UC without what Mayor Sarrato described as “sprawl.” Before
you today is a project designated as “student housing,” yet between this
“student housing” project and the University there is no infrastructure to
support a student housing project along “G” street or Bellevue Road, and it
is sandwiched between farmland. There is also no continuous bike lane
between this proposed project and UC Merced, nor a means of public
transportation. The UC student housing needs are best met near the UC,
as per the UC Long Range Development Plan (UC LRDP) so it is
questionable why this is designated as “student housing.” It is the definition
of a project contributing to “sprawl” as it is auto-dependent and puts an
unnecessary distance between the development and its intended user’s
daily destination.



The Telegan-Bright Fallout

Besides this questionable placement as “student housing” for the UC, there
is @ much more concerning issue of the impacts of this “leapfrog
development” on the surrounding properties. Originally, this project was
part of a larger joint development with Bright Homes (Tentative Map is on
the City Council agenda for March 3, 2021). In the plans for this
development was a phased development structure that would have
ensured that a full road was built for Merrill Place, and the infrastructure
built would connect the two developments to “G” Street. Mr. Telegan had
worked with Mr. Bright planning the infrastructure for drainage and for
roads. Over the course of time there was a disagreement between the two
developers. This fallout left two issues to be dealt with: drainage, and the
construction of the Merrill Place road itself.

Road Easements Never Intended to Impact Farming

The road easement on Merrill Place, as well as the road easement on the
future Paulson road, was dedicated by the Bandoni’s to the City of Merced
with the idea that development would occur contiguously and regularly,
from South to North in the future. In fact, the almond orchard on the
Bandoni property still has a lifespan of 15-20 more years! These
dedications were never intended to burden our active farmland prior to our
development. The Telegan project has shown this normal cadence of
development is not happening, with developers being allowed to skip over
large parcels of undeveloped land. Telegan’s project is asking for an
additional 17’ right of way within our actively farmed almond orchard (with a
remaining life span of 15+ years) to align with Merrill Place to the West
across “G” Street. This 17’ is ACTIVE farmland and it was stated by
Condition #10 that if the additional easement was not acquired, it would be
acquired WHEN AND IF Bandoni develops in the future. We will not grant
the 17’ easement at this time.



Seeking Drainage on OUR Property

As a result of the Telegan-Bright fallout, Mr. Telegan has also looked to our
land to provide drainage for his development, when he could not come to
an agreement with his original development partner. The location he has
suggested on OUR property within the PG&E easement is NOT in annexed
city land, was NOT included in the Initial Study, and would disrupt farming
practices. The parcel for Mr. Telegan’s project is surrounded by PG&E
easements to the North and West that are indeed annexed, were included
in the Initial Study, and are part of a development project (Bright) that
actively has plans to develop (tentative map is on the agenda for March 3,
2021). Telegan’s project is also adjacent to a future city park. City parks
are often used for drainage.

The Half-Road -- Why Not Align with Bright and Build a Full Road?

Both of these suggested easements would inch and creep their project onto
agricultural land prematurely. Not only that, but the developer wishes to
use our dedicated easement to the City of Merced for Merrill Place to build
a half road from “G” street back to his housing development, leaving the
rest of the North side of the road to be completed in the future. Upon Final
Map stage, Bright will dedicate the North side of the road, making it
possible to build a full road, and they are just behind Telegan in approvals.
Wouldn't it be better for the City of Merced if a full road was built? If
Telegan has bullied his way into being allowed to build a “half road,” is he
also putting in half-sufficient pipe sizes to support fire water pressure that
would support long-term development in the area? In short, isn’t there a
cost for “jumping in front of the line”?

The Fire Access Road -- Bulldozing Through Farmland Doesn’t Make
Sense.

This project aims to build an insufficient fire access road across the middle
of our ranch on the extension of Paulson Ave, connecting to East Cardella
Road, and dividing our farming operation in half with a 24-foot gravel road
that does not take into account topography, dividing the driveway to our



home in half, mature trees, and above all, an active farming operation. In
the attached letter, dated June 6, 2015, during the Conditional Use Permit
stage for #1200 (at that time under BP Investors LLC), we stated this exact
concern. We plead with you to look at other fire access options that go
across developing land North or West of the Telegan project, on future
PAVED roads (not all-weather gravel roads) rather than disrupting
farmland. When this fire road easement was dedicated, it could never have
been guessed developers would be allowed to “leapfrog” across miles of
active farmland to build “student housing” that was not even close to the
university! It was thought development would come from the South, moving
in an orderly fashion, instead of creating sprawl.

Relocation of the Private Drain

Finally, there is the issue of the relocation of the private drain within the
dedicated easement. As stated many times before, and unmistakably
present should anyone set eyes on the property line, this drain runs
underneath what will be Merrill Place and within the dedicated easement. |t
serves the Bandoni property for runoff from our property to the East of the
lower field into the Six-Mile Drain on “G” Street. This pipeline is
dual-purpose, carrying storm water during the winter and irrigation water for
the lower field from the MID canal during the summer. (See letter dated
January 16, 2018 attached and exhibits). It is our understanding that the
developer will agree to relocate this historic drain into the public facilities
easement and outside of the City’s right-of-way at their sole cost (including
any studies, engineering, costs for removal of trees, reconnection of
irrigation lines, connection to the MID Six-mile drain, etc.). The drain “shall
not serve any other use or purpose besides those currently established
unless there is agreement by all parties that have a right to discharge”
(Draft condition report). We are not interested in providing drainage
solutions nor in any way paying costs that would otherwise not occur if the
developer was not building this project. We are only interested in
maintaining our drainage pipe. In the letter from MID (attached, dated June
17, 2004), MID states, “When development occurs, owner must enter into a
“Storm Drainage Agreement...” yet WE are not developing at this point and



should not be subject to pay connection nor ongoing fees until development
of our land, nor offer the developer a permanent easement to the pipeline.

Why Is This Being Approved “Out of Order”?

Mr. Telegan has bullied and politicked his way into approvals for this
premature development. It is unfair to our family to place any of the burden
of this unorderly development on our land or on our pockets. This has
already been a burden to our time and finances. We should not be subject
to offer additional easements, divide our agricultural property, pay for
developers’ costs, or to disrupt our farming practices due to disagreements
between developers or urban sprawl.

This is a leapfrog development. This housing project should wait until
Bright Development has a final map, the other half of the easement of
Merrill Place has been dedicated by Bright so that a FULL road can be
built, and an orderly development process occurs from “G” St. back to this
project including proper fire access (not dividing farmland), drainage,
upgrades to “G” street, and well-constructed streets which will serve both
the needs of the housing development and this “student housing” project. If
there is going to be urban sprawl, at least have it done correctly. We plan
to continue actively farming our land until orderly development occurs.

As City Council Members, and as the gatekeepers of our city you hold the
power to protect Merced and defend the rights of our citizens.

Sincerely,

Vicki Bandoni and the Bandoni Family
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